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o s2m@6

Subject: RE: Long service leave query - negative balance [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

UNCLASSIFIED

Hello g

The APSC does have responsibility for administering the Long Service Leave (Commonwealth Employees) Act
1976 (LSL Act) and the Long Service Leave (Commonwealth Employees) Regulation 2016 (LSL Regs),
however, please note that the powers and functions conferred under the LSL Act were delegated to Agency
Heads in 1996.

The 2013 advice to which you refer was formulated following the provision of legal opinion about the intent
and interpretation of sections 18 and 19 of the LSL Act which state the method to be used to calculate long
service leave credit.

That opinion indicated that, it is not considered that a credit can be a debt or liability owed by a person. The
word ‘credit’ connotes a benefit in the nature of something owed to a person. The purpose of sections 18
and 19 of the LSL ACT is to provide the tools for working out the LSL credit of Commonwealth employees.
Section 18 sets out the formula for calculating the credit, while section 19 defines an important element of
the formula — the amount of long service leave previously granted. Both sections are ancillary to sections 16
and 17 and operate purely for the purposes of determining whether a person has a credit for the purposes
of those provisions, and if so, the size of the credit.

In this context, sections 18 and 19 cannot be regarded as creating a debt simply because the application of
these provisions in particular circumstances produces a negative number. All that this means is that there is
no credit for the purposes of determining entitlements under section 16 or 17. There is nothing in sections
16-19, or in the LSL Act as a whole, to suggest that these sections may be used to calculate or create a debt
rather than a credit.

If the application of the section 18 formula yields a negative number in these circumstances, this means that
the person has no credit, and thus no entitlement to either a grant of leave or a payment in lieu under the
LSL Act. It does not mean the person has a ‘negative credit’ such that they are liable for a debt owed to the
Commonwealth (or a Commonwealth body) if their Commonwealth employment ceases before they
acquire a credit. In our view, the LSL Act does not provide for or contemplate the concept of a negative
credit.

Whilst the employee does not have a ‘debt’ the ‘negative’ is not forgotten or ‘written off’ for the purposes
of accruing long service leave from that point forward. The credit remains at zero until such times as the
calculation yields a positive result resulting in a credit to the employee. So, if the calculation yields, for
example, a minus 0.6 months’ result, the employee’s balance would be ‘zero’” and the employee would not
receive a credit. The following year, the calculation would be done again and the result would be minus 0.3
months so the employee’s balance would be ‘zero’, with the employee receiving no credit. When the
calculation was done the next year, the result would be ‘zero’ so the employee would not receive a credit.
And, finally, the next year, the calculation would result in a plus 0.3 month credit so, only then would the



employee be credited with 0.3 of a month of long service leave.

So, essentially, the ‘negative’ remains a ‘negative’ but recorded as zero until such time that the ‘negative’ is
fully accounted for.

| trust this information is of assistance and please note, the above advice is based on the information you
have provided and our understanding of the LSL Act and is not legal advice. In this context, the Agency may
wish to seek independent legal advice on this matter. If you do seek legal advice, please forward me a copy
of the resulting advice in accordance with the Attorney-General's Legal Service Directions 2017.

Please note that this advice is only provided to human resource practitioners and senior executives in
Commonwealth agencies only. It is, therefore, not to be disseminated to other recipients, including
individual employees, without the express permission of the Commission.

Best regards

| Conditions Policy

s 22(1)(a)(ii) & S22 E I \V: vww.apsceova
From: SRS

Sent: Wednesday, 8 August 2018 10:53 AM
To: APSC - Workplace Relations
Subject: Long service leave query - negative balance [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

UNCLASSIFIED
Hi

I’'m seeking your advice on what the current policy is for employees who have a negative long service leave
balance due to recognising prior service with another organisation.

Historically, | was always under the impression that a negative long service leave balance was allowed as
outlined in the 1994 edition of the Personnel Operations Program training workbook on ‘Advanced Long
Service Leave’

Prior service which has resulted in a negative credit of LSL

An employee may have State service recognised for LSL purposes, however these
conditions may be less or more generous than Commonwealth conditions. Where an
employee has been paid in lieu for State service and has then had their service
recognised under the Commonwealth LSL Act, they may have a “negative” credit.
This employee is not entitled to further LSL entitiements until their payment in lieu is
subtracted and their balance under Commonwealth provisions becomes positive.

However, the more recent 2013 ‘Recognition of prior service’ participant workbook prepared by the HR
Operations Training Program (APSC) contradicts the above and states clearly the LSL Act does not provide
for, or contemplate, the concept of negative credit.



IFa payment in licu of LSL is made to an employee under State or Territory legislation, this must then
be accounted for in any calculation of long service leave credits on commencement in the APS.

Some state and territory schemes are more generous than the LSL Act and, in some of these
circumstances, the calculation results in a negative. le. they have accrued LSL earlier, or have accrued a
greater quantity, than they would have under the Commonwealth Scheme. When the calculation is done
under the LSL Act provisions, the resulting credit may be less than they have been paid in lieu for.

If this occurs, it does not mean that the employee ‘goes into the red or has a negative credit’. The
employee will have a zero balance, ie. the negative is automatically waived and they are not liable for
any debt to the Commonwealth.

THE LSL ACT DOES NOT PROVIDE FOR, OR CONTEMPLATE, THE CONCEPT OF A
NEGATIVE CREDIT

As mentioned above, we have an employee that will have a negative LSL balance due to recognising prior
service with another organisation. Can you advise if | am to ignore the negative balance and reset that
balance to Nil?

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you wish to discuss further.

Regards

s 22(1)(a)(ii)
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